
INVESTIGATIONS OFFICER, 
Claimant, 

v. 
CARMEN PARISE, 

Respondent. 

DECISION OF THE 
INDEPENDENT ADMINISTRATOR 

This matter involves two disciplinary charges filed by the 
Investigations Officer, Charles M. Carberry, against Carmen Parise 
("Parise"). Parise is the Secretary-Treasurer of IBT Local Union 
473 in Cleveland, Ohio and President of Joint Council 41, also in 
Cleveland. A hearing on the charges was conducted and post-hearing 
briefs were received. 

Having reviewed the evidence, the post-hearing submissions and 
the arguments of counsel, I find that the Investigations Officer 
has met his burden in proving both charges. 

I. THE CHARGES 
As noted, there are two separate charges at issue. Both 

allege that Parise violated Article II, Section 2(a) and Article 
XIX, Section 6(b) of the IBT Constitution by conducting himself in 
a manner to bring reproach upon the Union. 



A. Charge on* 
The facts underlying Charge One are set forth in the charge 

itself as follows: 
[Bjeginning in or about the summer of 1987, while an 

officer of Local 473, Parise assaulted and harassed Jerry 
Jones, a fellow member of Local 473, by threatening him 
with physical and economic harm. In or around June 1987, 
Parise and another officer of Local 473 came to Jones' 
place of employment and threatened to physically injure 
him. In or around September 1987, Parise came to Jones' 
place of employment and threatened to have him beaten. 
In addition, Parise threatened to use his power as a 
union official to cause Jones to lose his job and be 
unable to work because he allegedly had made statements 
critical of Parise and the local. 

B. Charge Two 
Charge Two is based on Parise's: 

Refus[al] to answer questions under oath relating to 
whether [he] had any knowledge about or involvement in 
the beating of Jerry Jones by another member of Local 473 
on November 20, 1987. 

II. THE IBT CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS AT ISSUE 
The two charges implicate two provisions of the IBT 

Constitution — Article II, §2(a) and Article XIX, S6(b). As 
explained by United States District Judge, David N. Edelstein, in 
United States v. IBT fin Re: Application XXIII. 88 Civ. 4486 (DNE), 
slip op. (S.D.N.Y. May 9, 1991), at p. 2: 

Article II, S2(a) is the IBT membership oath, which 
provides in pertinent part that "every IBT member shall 
conduct himself or herself in a manner so as not to bring 
reproach upon the Union . . .." 
Article XIX, Section 6(b), is a non-exhaustive list of the 

"base[s] for charges against members, officers, elected Business 



Agents, Local Unions, Joint Councils or other subordinate bodies 
for which he or it shall stand trial . . .." Included in that list 
are: 

(1) Violation of any specific provision of the 
Constitution, Local Union Bylaws or Rules of 
Order, or failure to perform any of the duties 
specified thereunder. 

(2) Violation of oath of office or of the oath of 
loyalty to the Local Union and the 
International Union. 

III. THE ASSAULT - CHARGE ONE 
A. The Investigations Officer's Case 
In support of Charge One, the Investigations Officer 

introduced an audio tape of a September 4, 1987, oral exchange 
during which Parise is heard threatening the physical being and 
economic welfare of a fellow member of Local 473, Jerry Jones 
("Jones"). Subsequent to the hearing before me, Parise pled guilty 
to a criminal charge arising out of the September 4, 1987, 
incident. Specifically, Parise pled guilty to violating 29 U.S.C. 
§530 (violent deprivation of Union member's rights). Parise's 
Judgment of Conviction was entered on June 11, 1991, in the United 
States District Court for the Northern District of Ohio. This 
Judgement of Conviction was included as part of the Investigations 
Officer's post-hearing submission. 

Given the evidence presented to me at the hearing, it comes as 
no surprise that Parise pled guilty to the criminal charge. As 
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noted, Parise's threats were recorded on tape. Moreover, at the 
hearing, Parise admitted to threatening Jones. T105-9 to T106-4.^ 

The following exchange occurred at the hearing during the 
cross-examination of Parise by counsel for the Investigations 
Officer. 

COUNSEL - In September of 1987, did you go to Mr. 
Jones' place of employment and threaten to have him 
beaten? 

PARISH - I did. 
COUNSEL - Did you threaten to use your position as 

a union official to cause Mr. Jones to lose his job. 
PARISE - I did. 
[T105-9 to T106-4] 

What follows are typical excerpts from the September audio 
tape. Parise is speaking to Jones: 

The day after this Pressman's election, you'll be 
sorry the day you was born, you mother-fucker . . .. 
Every time you turn around, I'll have somebody give you 
a fucking beating. You understand me? 
[Investigations Officer's Ex. 5A at 1-2] 

* * * 

When I get through with you, you won't be fit to be 
a garbage man. Let me tell you something else. When I 
get through with you, you won't get a fucking job any 
place Teamsters are at. Do you understand? 
[Id. at 8.] 

* * * 

Like I told you, you'd better hope this fucking 
election don't come for three years, because I'm telling 
you, the day after it you're through. You might as well 
fucking quit, because you're fucking through. Do you 

l t<T" refers to the transcript of the hearing before me. The 
cite refers to the transcript page number followed by the line 
number. In this case, T105-9 to T106-4 refers to transcript page 
105, line 9 through transcript page 106, line 4. 
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understand? . . .. Every time you open that fucking 
mouth, somebody's going to bust it for me. That's the 
way it's going to be around here. The day after that 
fucking election . . .. The only reason I didn't do it 
now is I ain't making you a hero. I ain't going to give 
those clowns an issue and make you a fucking big man. 
But the day after, win, lose or draw, you're fucked and 
I want you to know it. You understand? 
[Id. at 12-13.] 

At the hearing, Parise testified as to what prompted the 
September 4, 1987, exchange. See. T70-17 to T72-5. Essentially, 
Parise blamed it on the fact that Jones by his conduct and "lies" 
about Parise had provoked Parise's admitted wrongdoing. I must 
reject this attempted justification. Labor union leaders will 
constantly draw criticism. Physical harm, economic harm and 
"blacklisting" are not the appropriate responses. 

The evidence before me conclusively proves that in September 
of 1987, Parise went to Jones' place of employment and violently 
threatened him. Charge One, however, alleges that Parise was 
involved in three separate incidents involving Jones. In addition 
to the September incident, it is alleged that "in or about the 
Summer of 1987 . . . Parise assaulted and harassed Jerry Jones 
. . .." It is also alleged that "[i]n or around June 1987, Parise 

. came to Jones' place of employment and threatened to 
physically injure him." The Investigations Officer's evidence only 
addressed the September 1987 incident. In fact, Parise 
specifically denied ever threatening Jones in "the Summer of 1987" 
or in "June of 1987." T72-12 to 19. Thus, I find that the 
Investigations Officer has carried his burden on Charge One, only 
insofar as he has established that "[i]n or around September 1987, 
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Parise came to Jones' place of employment and threatened to have 
him beaten." 

B. Parise's Defense Of Charge One 
l. Th* Article XIX Section 3(d) Defense. 

Article XIX, Section 3(d) of the IBT Constitution provides, in 
pertinent part, as follows: 

Charges against elective officers of the 
International Union or any subordinate body shall be 
limited only to those activities or actions occurring 
during their current term of office, and only those 
activities and actions occurring prior to their current 
term which were not then known generally by the 
membership of the International Union or the subordinate 
body in the case of an officer of a subordinate body. 
It is now settled that a Respondent who raises the Section 

3(d) defense has the burden of proving "that the membership . . . 
had conclusive knowledge that defendants were actually guilty of 
the conduct charged when they were elected to their current term of 
office". United States v. IBT. 735 F.Supp 506, 517 (S.D.N.Y.), 
aff'd. 905 F.2d 610 (2nd Cir. 1990). 

Parise argues that Section 3(d): 
[P]recludes the instant charges against [him] 

because he was elected to serve a new term as Secretary-
Treasurer of Teamsters Local 473 in December of 1989, at 
which time the activities and actions referred to in 
Charge No. 1 were known generally by the membership of 
teamsters subordinate body namely Local 473. 
[Parise Post-Hearing Memorandum at p. 43.] 

Parise was also elected as President of Joint Council 41 in 
November, 1990, and again he asserts the Joint Council 41 delegates 
"knew generally" of his activities. Parise Post-Hearing Memorandum 
at p. 43. 
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Parise asserts that he is protected by Section 3(d) because 
the conduct for which he was charged, threatening Mr. Jones, was: 
memorialized on audio tape and subsequently transcribed; liberally 
quoted in the February 1989 edition of Cleveland Magazine 

% (Investigations Officer's Ex. 9); discussed at numerous Local 473 
general membership meetings as well as meetings of the Local 473 
Executive Board; the subject of a motion to dismiss Parise's 
criminal charge (the tape was attached to the motion); and played 
by Mr. Jones for "quite a few people." Parise Post-Hearing 
Memorandum at pp. 44-45. 

Parise's Section 3(d) defense can be summarily dismissed. 
Until the day of the hearing before me, Parise had denied his 
guilt. In an Open Letter published by Parise's attorneys in the 
Local 473 newsletter in the Summer of 1990, it was clearly 
indicated that Parise would "defend [himself] against the charges 
filed by Mr. Carberry." Investigations Officer's Ex. 13 at p. 5. 
Moreover, Parise did not plead guilty to the criminal charge until 
after the hearing before me. 

It is well settled that Section 3(d) cannot serve as a shield 
to a charge when a charged individual denies the underlying 
conduct. United States v. IBT. (Application III). 725 F.Supp 162, 
165, (S.D.N.Y.) aff'd. 905 F.2d 610 (2d Cir. 1990). Given Parise's 
denial of guilt until the hearing before me, I find that Parise has 
failed to carry his Section 3(d) burden. 
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2. The Settlement Agreement 
Parise also relies on the fact that prior to the hearing 

before me he had entered into an Agreement with the Investigations 
Officer resolving the charges. That Agreement, dated December 18, 
1990, called for Parise to serve a three-month suspension from the 
IBT. While I approved the Agreement, United States District Judge 
David N. Edelstein rejected it as unsatisfactory. Thus, a hearing 
was scheduled and held. Parise argues that because he served his 
three-month suspension pursuant to the Agreement, Judge Edelstein's 
rejection of the Agreement did not, and in fact could not, affect 
its validity. See Parise Post-Hearing Memorandum at 54. I 
disagree. 

The March 14, 1989, Consent Order expressly provides that, 
"[a]ny decision of the Independent Administrator shall be . . . 
subject to the Court's review as provided herein." Consent Order, 
para. 12(A). Further, the Agreement itself specifically provided 
for its submission to the District Court so that it may "be entered 
as an order." December 18, 1990, Agreement, at p. 4, I 7. 

Given the clear terms of the Consent Order and of the 
Agreement itself, Parise's suggestion that I should disregard the 
District Court's rejection of the Agreement must be ignored. 

Parise also argues that a representative of my office, saying 
he spoke for me, advised Parise's counsel that it was not necessary 
for Judge Edelstein to approve the Agreement and that it would be 
submitted to him as a mere formality. Parise Post-Hearing 
Memorandum at 47. Parise claims that he began serving his 
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suspension in reliance upon the alleged representation, and in 
fact, completed it prior to Judge Edelstein's rejection of the 
Agreement.^ Thus, Parise argues the Agreement became a binding 
contract. Id. at 50-51. Parise had an Agreement but it was with 
the Investigations Officer, not with the Independent Administrator, 
and it was made expressly subject to approval by both Judge 
Edelstein and me. Despite Parise's counsel's version of events, my 
position has never wavered. As I explained at the hearing: 

It has never been my position that Judge Edelstein's 
signature was not necessary for approval of any 
Agreements that have been entered into by the 
Investigations Officer and counsel for the respondent in 
any charge and there have been many of them. That's why 
I forward them automatically to Judge Edelstein . . .. 
[T17-18 to 25.] 

IV. THE FAILURE TO TESTIFY — CHARGE TWO 
The Investigations Officer also charged that Parise brought 

reproach upon the IBT, violated his oath of office and violated the 
AFL-CIO Code of Ethical Practices by taking the Fifth Amendment and 
refusing to answer certain questions during his July 2, 1990, 
deposition. A copy of the deposition transcript was introduced as 
Investigations Officer's Ex. 16. At the outset of that deposition, 

^Were this contention relevant, I would consider holding a full 
evidentiary hearing on what may or may not have been said by anyone 
in my office to Mr. Parise or his counsel. However, it is not 
relevant. Certainly I have, without exception, submitted every 
decision or agreement to Judge Edelstein for his review and 
approval as required by the Consent Order. Moreover, Mr. Parise 
does not and cannot claim prejudice from a reliance upon what he 
contends was told to him. Any alleged prejudice was cured by 
having a full hearing at which Mr. Parise had, and took advantage 
of, the opportunity to answer the charges against him. 
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Parise's counsel advised that Parise would be asserting his Fifth 
Amendment right in response to questions involving his then pending 
prosecution under 29 U.S.C. §530. Investigations Officer's Ex. 16 
at p. 5. A review of Parise's deposition transcript reveals that 
Parise refused to answer many questions posed by the Investigations 
Officer, not only in connection with his pending prosecution, but 
in connection with many other legitimate areas of inquiry which 
were not the subject of the then pending indictment. 

For example Parise refused to answer when asked: 
i. Sir, do you know Frank Costanzo...[and] is he 

a member of your Local? 
[Id- at pp. 21-23] 

ii. Do you know Ronald Milano? 
[Ig. at p. 23] 

iii. . . . [D]o you have any knowledge that either 
Mr. Costanzo, Mr. Tarantino, Mr. Arrigo, Mr. 
Demand and Mr. Graziolli, any or all of them 
were attempting to interfere with Mr. Milano 
testifying before a grand jury? 
fid, at pp. 2-6] 

iv. Did you sir, do anything to attempt to 
influence the testimony of Mr. Jerry Jones or 
Mr. Ronald Milano before a grand jury? 
[Id. at pp. 8-10] 

v. Has Mr. Milano ever brought a grievance 
against the company to your attention? 
[Ig. at pp. 17-18] 

vi. Did there come a time, sir, when you were 
ordered by the United States District Court in 
the Northern District of Ohio to refrain from 
interfering with a grand jury witness, sir? 
[13. at pp. 4-7] 

vii. And did Mr. Milano request that a grievance against 
his employer be brought to arbitration? 
[Ig. at 20-22] 
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viii. Did you ever give Mr. Arrigo directions to 
ostracize Ron Milano from the other employees 
of the Plain Dealer Publishing Company? 
[Id. at pp. 23-25] 

Parise argues that "it is a violation of his constitutional 
right against self-incrimination for the Investigations Officer to 
charge him under the IBT Constitution for properly asserting his 
Fifth Amendment rights". Parise Post-Hearing Memorandum at p. 18. 
This argument raises the issue of whether the Investigations 
Officer's exercise of his power to compel the in-person sworn 
testimony of union officials constitutes "state action" compelling 
the application of the Fifth Amendment's protections. In 
determining the merits of this charge, however, I need not resolve 
the "state action" issue. 

It is clear that the invocation of the Fifth Amendment 
privilege "may, under certain circumstances, have an impact on a 
[union] member's tenure as a union officer and/or member." See. 
Investigations Officer v. Senese. et al.. Decision of the 
Independent Administrator (July 12, 1990) at p. 30, aff'd. United 
States v. IBT fAPDlication XIII. 745 F.Supp. 908 (S.D.N.Y. 1990) 
(Wherein Respondents' refusal to answer questions before a federal 
grand jury investigating the skimming of funds from a Las Vegas 
casino was found to have brought reproach upon the IBT). See also. 
Investigations Officer v. Calaana. Decision of the Independent 
Administrator (May 6, 1991) at p. 14, (Wherein Respondent's refusal 
to answer questions propounded by the Investigations Officer during 
deposition was found to have brought reproach upon the IBT.) 
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This view is especially compelling given the AFL-CIO Code of 
Ethical Practices which states that it is the policy of the AFL-CIO 
that if a union officer "decides to invoke the Fifth Amendment for 
his personal protection and to avoid scrutiny . . . he has no right 
to continue to hold office in his union." See Senese. supra. 
Decision of the Independent Administrator, at pp. 29-30; Calaona. 
supra. Decision of the Independent Administrator, at pp. 13-14. 
Parise argues that the AFL-CIO Code cannot serve as basis for 
Charge Two. 

While the AFL-CIO Code is mentioned in the Investigations 
Officer's charge, Charge Two is considered here within the 
parameters of the IBT Constitution. The policy underlying the AFL-
CIO Code is discussed here only because I find it probative in the 
context of determining whether Parise's failure to testify brought 
reproach upon the Union in violation of the IBT Constitution. 

In this case, I find that the Investigations Officer has 
carried his burden of proving Charge Two. In finding that Charge 
Two has been sustained, it is significant that Parise testified 
freely at the hearing before me about the incident involving Jones. 
At the time of the hearing, Parise's indictment was still pending. 
Thus, his attempt to justify his refusal to testify at the 
deposition because of the pending indictment is disingenuous. Cf. 
Calagna, supra. Decision of the Independent Administrator, at p. 18 
(Respondent's decision to testify at hearing before the Independent 
Administrator does not cure prior failure to testify before the 
Investigations Officer). 



Parise's refusal to answer questions concerning other 
legitimate areas of inquiry such as the possible interference with 
grand jury witnesses is further evidence of Parise's attempt to 
block the Investigations Officer's proper scrutiny into possible 
corrupt influences within the IBT. 

In defending against Charge Two, Parise again relies on the 
December 18, 1991, Agreement that he had entered into with the 
Investigations Officer and which was subsequently rejected by Judge 
Edelstein. For the reasons discussed in connection with Charge One 
(see, pp. 8-9, supra), this defense is without merit. 

Lastly, counsel for Parise claims that he was told by a 
representative of the Investigations Officer that Parise could 
refuse to testify without fear of retribution. The alleged 
representation was purportedly made by Robert W. Gaffey, Special 
Counsel to the Investigations Officer, during a June 14, 1991, 
breakfast meeting with counsel for Parise, Paul Lefkowitz. I 
reject this claim. 

I find it striking that this argument was raised for the first 
time at the hearing before me. In fact, Parise's counsel wrote a 
letter to the Investigations Office (dated June 15, 1991), 
purporting to memorialize the meeting at which the alleged 
representation was made, but made no mention of the representation 
in that letter. I find this to be a telling omission. 

In addition, I accord weight to the April 25, 1991, 
Declaration of Mr. Gaffey, wherein Mr. Gaffey states: 

I have said to Mr. Lefkowitz that, because hearings 
under the Consent Order are civil proceedings that, 
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unlike criminal cases, the Investigations Officer would 
request the Independent Administrator to draw appropriate 
adverse inferences if an IBT member, later charged, took 
the Fifth Amendment when a sworn statement was taken by 
the Investigations Officer. In discussing that topic, I 
made no distinction between indicted persons taking the 
Fifth Amendment and unindicted persons taking the Fifth 
Amendment. 

V. THE PENALTY TO BE IMPOSED 
A. Charge One 
Parise's violent threats towards a fellow union member cannot 

be condoned and his actions are deserving of punishment. The 
viciousness of those threats is frightening when they are actually 
heard on the tape. Fortunately for Jones, he had taped Parise's 
verbal attack upon him, and thus Parise could not deny it. Once 
exposed, it would have been foolhardy for Parise to have thereafter 
moved to carry out the threats. However, in my judgment, had there 
been no tape, Parise would have carried out his threats to 
"blackball" Jones and have him physically injured. Parise did not 
strike me as a man who made idle threats. Certainly, his verbal 
abuse of Jones, conveyed to me, as I heard it, only one meaning: 
Parise was going to do exactly what he was promising to do. This, 
leads me to conclude that it is appropriate to impose upon Parise 
a suspension of twenty-four months from the IBT and its affiliates, 
including its Joint Council and its Locals. I will, however, 
credit Parise with the three-months suspension already served in 
compliance with his Agreement with the Investigations Officer. 
Thus, by virtue of this decision, Parise is to remove himself from 
the IBT and all of his IBT-affiliated union positions (including 
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membership in the IBT) and draw no money compensation therefrom or 
from any other IBT-affiliated source for an additional period of 
twenty-one months. 

Lastly, with an eye toward preventing potential problems in 
Local 473 involving Parise, Jones and Milano, I direct that in the 
future Parise shall not in any way, directly or indirectly, harass, 
interfere with, threaten or take any other action in any way 
detrimental to the rights, employment, IBT membership, benefits or 
other interests of Local 473 members Jones and Milano. Moreover, 
I direct Parise immediately to instruct all officers, business 
agents and members of Local 473 to refrain from taking any 
retaliatory action against Jones and/or Milano, and to ensure that 
such instructions are followed. In addition, Parise shall not 
participate in any way in any grievance, disciplinary matter, 
arbitration or any other Union matter pertaining to Jones and/or 
Milano at any time in the future. The above prohibitions are 
effective immediately. 

B. Charge Two 
When called upon by the Investigations Officer to testify 

about misconduct occurring in his Local in various forms, Parise 
refused to testify. Parise's silence effectively precluded the 
Investigations Officer's authorized scrutiny into possible corrupt 
and dishonest activities in Parise's Local. Instead of cooperating 
with the Investigations Officer, whose task under the Consent Order 
it is to rid the union of its corrupt influences, Parise chose to 
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ignore his duty as a union officer, and thus brought reproach upon 
the IBT. 

Accordingly, I impose a period of suspension of twenty-four 
months on Parise for his failure to testify before the 
Investigations Officer. I will also credit Parise with three-
months served with respect to this charge. Accordingly, on Charge 
Two, Parise shall be suspended for an additional period of twenty-
one months to run concurrently with the suspension imposed on 
Charge One. 

VI. PARISE'S BENEFITS 
At my request, Parise's attorney wrote to me on July 2, 1991, 

and indicated that Parise is a participant in the following plans, 
funds and benefit programs: 

1. The Local 473 Health and Welfare Fund; 
2. The Local 473 Pension Fund; 
3. The Joint Council 41 Severance Plan; and 
4. The use of a Union-owned automobile. 

My authority to impose sanctions upon a Respondent's employee 
benefits is now well-settled. See Investigations Officer v. 
Senese. et al.. Supplemental Decision of the Independent 
Administrator (November 29, 1990), aff'd. United States v. IBT. 753 
F.Supp 1181 (S.D.N.Y. 1990). 

Consistent with my ruling in Senese. I will not alienate any 
of Parise's vested benefits. See also, Guidry v. Sheet Metal 
Workers National Pension Fund. 110 S.Ct. 680 (1990) (regarding the 
alienation of vested pension benefits). However, I direct that 
Local 473, Joint Council 41 and any other IBT-affiliated entity 
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that may contemplate doing so, not contribute to any of the above-
listed plans, funds or benefit programs during Parise's twenty-one 
month period of suspension. This, of course, means that Parise is 
not entitled to the use of the Union-owned automobile during his 
suspension. Parise may, however, make contributions to his Health 
and Welfare Fund, Pension Fund, and Severance Fund, from his own 
personal funds, during his suspension. 

Counsel for Parise has indicated that, to date, Local 473 has 
paid Parise's attorney fees in connection with Parise's defense of 
these charges. He states that the Investigations Officer was made 
aware of these payments over one year ago and posed no objection. 
Whether the Investigations Officer objected to the arrangement 
Parise had struck with his Local regarding the payment of legal 
fees is of no moment. It is well-recognized that a Union cannot 
pay for legal fees on behalf of a Union official found to have 
committed misconduct. See, e.g.. United States v. Local 1804-1. 
732 F.Supp. 434, 436-437 (S.D.N.Y. 1990). See also. Morrisev v. 
Segal. 526 F.2d 121, 127 (2d Cir. 1975). 

Accordingly, I order the Executive Board of Local 473 to take 
all necessary steps to obtain reimbursement from Parise for the 
funds already expended to pay his attorney fees. Further, if 
Parise refuses to reimburse the Local, I direct that Local 473 
recover the amount of monies it expended in attorney fees from the 
salary and compensation it pays Parise now, and during the period 
of the stay I am ordering the Local not to make any future payments 
of attorneys fees on Parise's behalf. Thus no salary or 
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compensation will be paid to Parise from this date forward, until 
the attorneys fees are recaptured. If this source should prove 
inadequate, then resort shall be had to the monies vested in 
Parise's Severance Plan. 

With the exception of my determinations concerning any future 
payments of Parise's attorney fees, and my prohibitions on Parise 
regarding Jones and Milano (see p. 15, supra). I will stay this 
decision pending Judge Edelstein's review. To that end, I will 
submit this decision to Judge Edelstein for "review by way of 
Application. 

Frederick B. Lacey 
Independent Administrator 

Dated: July 29, 1991 
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